COUNCIL MEETING
FEBRUARY 4, 2009

1. Invocation: David M. Howells, Sr.
2. Pledge to the Flag

3. Roll Call


Mr. Donovan, Ms. Eichenwald, Mr. Guridy, Mr. Howells, Mr. Phillips, Mr. Schweyer, and Mr. D’Amore

4. Courtesy of the Floor

Louis Hershman, 405 Gilmore Street, said the purpose of speaking is the Golf Course restaurant. He was asked by some golfers how the award went to the Brew Works. The president of the Golf Course Association presented a petition to Council. They told the owner of the Sandtrap Grille the day before Christmas to move his stuff. They don’t know how the committee who decided this was chosen. The golfers aren’t happy before the menu prices are higher. The City violated the law by holding back information he requested as a taxpayer.

Joe Sarco said he’s representing the golfers of Allentown. He presented a petition to Council with 150 names. From the golfers’ point of view, when you have a successful facility such as the Sandtrap Grill, and they’ve been there 10 years . . .  most of them have been playing there for 30/40 years. It’s the best run operation they’ve ever had at Muni. They offer low prices and quality products. They conduct the tournaments and special events in a professional manner. Why are we going to a vendor who is another sports bar with higher prices? The Sandtrap Grille was going to pay the City the same thing they were asking for; they were meeting all the accommodations of the City contract. Why are we trying something that may not be successful? They never asked any of the golfers, or people who just walk into the restaurant, if we were happy with the Sandtrap Grill. You would think they would have checked out Bethlehem Muni to see how the people liked that transition. How was this bid awarded? Why would you kick out somebody who has provided all of us with superior service and products for 10 years?

Ms. Eichenwald asked how many golfers do you represent in your association?

Mr. Saco said about 150 to 200 players.

Ms. Eichenwald asked how long was the present owner there?
Mr. Sarco said 10 years.

Ms. Eichenwald asked Council President D’Amore what can we do? It was run by good management.

Mr. D’Amore said the first thing they should do is ask questions about the bidding process. He asked Ken Bennington to review how this process moved forward.

Ken Bennington said Greg Weitzel, the Director of Parks and Recreation, who supervises the Golf Course along with Mary Ellen Koval, the Purchasing Director. The RFP’s went out in October. The bids were due back by November. Sandtrap Griflle and Brew Works were brought in to be interviewed by a committee of 5 people. Himself, Greg Weitzel, Jeff Wambold, Mary Ellen Koval and Larry Hilliard. We asked the same questions of both candidates. Each candidate was graded independently and came up with an average. They made a decision based on that. Everything was above board; everyone was rated equally. That was the process.
Mr. Sarco asked if that was all documented?

Mr. Bennington said yes. Members of Council also have those documents.

Ms. Eichenwald said Mr. Stanley owned this business for 10 years. His clientele was perfectly satisfied. She’d like to pursue this in some fashion.

Mr. Schweyer said he has frequented the Sandtrap Grill and firmly believes that you had very quality service. It was clean; prices were reasonable; and never had any issues there. He’s also visited Bethlehem Municipal along with their Council President, Bob Donchez. The difference with what they had prior and what they have now is night and day. This is an opportunity for the City to not just be satisfied with what we have but expand our product and actually grow. He’s had conversations with no less than 4 potential tournaments who refused to move their tournaments to Allentown because we don’t have the facilities for a quality product for them. The question is were we comfortable maintaining the status quo? A good product with a reasonable cost or did we want to change direction? He has requested and reviewed the proposals. Mr. Hershman was right. The rental income was a tiny bit higher than the Sandtrap Grille -- $1,000 over the course of 5 years. The menu options and pricing are more expensive under the Brew Works than the Sandtrap Grille. The Brew Works was offering to increase the value of the parcel owned by the City. Sandtrap Grille was wiling to repaint and replace carpeting. The Brew Works was adding a new bar, a take-out window, rehabbing all the outdoor facilities and inside – similar to their facilities in Allentown and Bethlehem. That’s a permanent investment for the City. The question was not the quality of the work. It was is this something the City is comfortable having or do we want to expand our operations. Based on responses from the RFP, the Brew Works had a much bigger vision. In Bethlehem, on a Tuesday night, they had 25 people using that restaurant. He was there on a sunny day in the summer, and the place was packed. It’s an opportunity for us to have another quality restaurant with an expanded menu plus a $200,000 improvement to the property and will bring in far more business, because of the tournaments that have declined to play in Allentown. He supports the Administration’s decision.
Robert Stanley, owner of the Sandtrap Grille, said he’s been there for 10 years. The first contract was with Mayor Heydt. He said he didn’t want to have an after-hours joint. It’s a place for the golfers and the average guy. The first time he met Mayor Pawlowski he told him he was delinquent on his contract. He asked how? He told him he was supposed to put a deck on. He put a whole room on back there for $40,000-$50,000. He also told him Outback would love to have this property. He doesn’t think General Trexler wanted an Outback there. He submitted his bid in November. He was told 3 or 4 days later, verbally, he had the bid. In the meantime, people were coming in saying he was leaving and they wanted to buy his equipment. Then he was told he had a meeting at City Hall thinking he was going to sign the contract. It turned out to be an interview. On December 23rd he got a phone call to meet with Greg Weitzel. He told him the Brew Works got the bid. He had just been told 3 weeks before the bid was his. Then he was told he had to be out by the end of the year. He got out on January 3rd. He lost approximately $20,000 in sales and equipment. It has taken his livelihood away. They put out a great product with a very reasonable price. He has tournaments that go there because of him.
Mr. D’Amore  asked who informed him he got the bid?

Mr. Stanley said the general manager, Jeff Wambold, of the golf course. He was on the bid committee.

Mr. D’Amore said you said you received notification.

Mr. Stanley said he received notification on the 23rd of December to be out by January 1st. The official notification, which he was told, will be in the mail. He got a certified letter on December 31st. 

Mr. D’Amore asked when did you receive notification of the RFP?

Mr. Stanley said a month before. The 5 people who judged him do not have any experience running a restaurant or bar.

Mr. Guridy asked if he submitted a proposal with an expansion?

Mr. Stanley said he was putting in new carpeting and TV. The City was going to do the floors.

Mr. Guridy asked if they requested in the proposal for you to expand?

Mr. Stanley said no.

Mr. Guridy said it sounds like they told you one thing and told the Brew Works something else. Were the renovations part of the proposal?

Mr. Stanley said they asked what renovations would you make? Who would put $200,000 of renovations into a 3 year contract?

Mr. Bennington said in the RFP under T, Award Criteria, it specifies renovations to the facility. Both knew of that.

Mr. Stanley said he was told 4 years ago, when the Mayor Pawlowski worked under Afflerbach, he wanted him out of there.

Mr. Bennington said the Mayor was not involved in this process in any way, shape or form. There were 5 members on the committee. The Mayor had no influence.

Mr. Phillips asked if Jeff Wambold had the authority to tell him he had the bid?

Mr. Bennington said absolutely not. Why would we go through the interviewing process?

Mr. Phillips asked what repercussions will be on him for making those statements?

Mr. Bennington said he was part of the committee. He participated in the interview process and grading.
Mr. Phillips asked if there’s a report or verification about what Mr. Stanley said was told to him?

Mr. Bennington said no.

Ms. Eichenwald said her remarks are directed to Mr. Schweyer. She believes grand visions have their place. She also thinks it behooves us to look at an appropriate business model. McDonald’s owns property all over. They could have decided bigger things but they decided on their clientele for their market. The same thing applies here. We know Mr. Stanley has a market for the product he delivers. It’s a golf course, not a country club. Our City has not always experienced what’s best in the grand vision. We have a better shot with an appropriate business model. Both bidders offer the same amount of rent. The City will have the same income regardless of who won the bid. The loyal golfers will be denied going to a facility in which they are comfortable.

Mr. Donovan asked how many people signed Mr. Stanley’s petition?

Mr. Stanley said 150 or so.

Greg Weitzel said they have a tracking of golfers playing 50,000 rounds.

Mr. Donovan said there was a suggestion that during the interview process questions were not asked.

Mr. Stanley said Mr. Bennington asked him one question and Mr. Weitzel asked him the rest.

Mr. Bennington said the same questions were asked of both bidders.

Mr. Donovan asked if there was any research done with the golfers who play there?

Mr. Bennington said you have RFP’s for the processes for the City of Allentown. The people who make the decisions aren’t going to stay with the people in place. If you’re going to do that, why put out RFP’s? We asked questions based on our information, and we made a decision based on a process in place. He made sure this was all above board. That’s how he operates. The answers they got from the Brew Works were better.

Mr. Stanley said if this would have been golfing season, 90% of the people would have voted on his behalf.

Mr. Schweyer said is it fair to say the guy who runs the golf course has a pretty good sense of what the golfers want?

Mr. Stanley said he sees a lot more golfers than Jeff does. He’s there more hours.

Mr. Howells said he’s known Mr. Stanley for a long time. He runs a good show out there. The Recreation Commission holds their meetings there in the summer time and they always have something to eat. The interview process is the most highly litigated area for any selection group. He finds Jeff Wambold to be a man of high integrity, as well as you. You ran a restaurant with high quality food and a great place to eat.
Paulette Hunter wanted to know what the status of the youth council is. Regarding the golf course, they should have done a survey on what the citizens wanted. If nobody complained about it, why are we changing it? The County and City got money for housing. She thinks people should be informed.

Mr. Schweyer said they were contacted by a college student who is examining our youth advisory council. They will meet with her and see if she will start spearheading it on a intern-volunteer basis. 

Mr. Phillips said about housing. They are homeless because they choose to be; or, transients moving through. Some may have mental health issues.

Mr. Donovan said he and Mr. D’Amore have issued an invitation for the Superintendent of the school district.

5. Approval of Minutes: December 17, 2008
6. Old Business:  None.
7. Communications:  None.
8. REPORTS FROM COMMITTEES:

Budget and Finance: Chairperson Donovan said the Committee has not met since the last council meeting; since the committee meeting was postponed last Wednesday due to inclement weather, a meeting has been scheduled for February 11 at 6:30 PM in Council Chambers. 
Public Safety: Chairperson Howells said the Committee has not met since the last Council meeting; a future meeting has not been scheduled.
Mr. Howells said at the appropriate time, he would like to suspend the rules and bring R9 to the front of the agenda.
Community and Economic Development: Chairperson Schweyer said the Committee has not met since the last Council meeting; a future meeting has not yet been scheduled.
Parks and Recreation: Chairperson Phillips said the Committee met this evening; a future meeting has not been scheduled but the plan is to meet the on the fourth Wednesday of the month either before or after the Budget and Finance Meeting.
Public Works: Chairperson Guridy said the Committee met this evening; a future meeting has not been scheduled.
Human Resources, Administration and Appointments: Chairperson Eichenwald said the Committee has not met since the last Council meeting; a future meeting has not been scheduled

Rules, Chambers, Intergovernmental Relations and Strategy:  Chairperson D’Amore said the Committee has not met since the last Council meeting; a future meeting has not been scheduled.
OTHER COMMITTEE REPORTS

CONTROLLER’S REPORT – No Report
9. ORDINANCES FOR FINAL PASSAGE:

Mr. Howells, Mr. Donovan and Mr. Phillips moved to suspend the rules to bring R9 to the front of the agenda.

The rules were suspended by common consent.

R9

Appointment of Four Police Officers 

Mr. Howells asked how many applications did you have?

Chief MacLean said about 475, about 50% pass the tests.

R9 was approved, 7 Yeas and 0 Nays.

Bill 123

Administration Sponsored: Providing for the vacation of North Mohr Street from Gordon Street to Wayne Street and a portion of Wayne Street from North Mohr Street west to the west property line extension of 412 Gordon Street in the Ninth Ward of the City of Allentown

Mr. Guridy said this bill was forwarded favorably, unanimously. It is for the St. Aloysius Society, behind Sacred Heart Church. This will create about 8 parking spaces.
Mr. Donovan said he noted Verizon objected. Was it a serious objection?

Richard Young said they typically object. They usually request a Deed of Easement.
Bill 123 was adopted, 7 Yeas and 0 Nays.

Bill 2

Administration Sponsored: Amending Article 941, the Sewage and Industrial Wastes Ordinance to comply with EPA required changes as mandated by the National Pretreatment, Program(40 CFR 403). Pretreatment Streamlining Rule Required Changes
Mr. Guridy said this bill was discussed at the Public Works meeting tonight. It was forwarded favorably, 3-0, with an amendment. The fees need to be established by ordinance not by the AIM.
Mr. Guridy and Mr. Donovan moved to amend Bill 2 as follows:  Replace fees as required by the AIM to fees required by the Charter and add “A Council appointment shall be made by the Council President.”.
The amendment to Bill 2 was approved, 7 Yeas and 0 Nays.

Mr. Donovan said within this ordinance there is a specification of the fees. Do we have to have a separate ordinance and do we strike that section?

Mr. Guridy said there has to be a board appointed by the Mayor. The board only meets on an as-needed basis.

Mr. Phillips suggested a member be appointed by Council so we also have insight in case any irregularities come up.

Mr. Guridy said the members of the board are very specific. 

Mr. Phillips said if it’s prohibited by the rules, that would be one thing.

Mr. Phillips and Mr. Howells moved to amend Bill 2 by adding “appointments shall be City residents, and the City Council designee shall be a City resident.”
Attorney Marchetto said he needs to research the amendment to make sure it is allowed by law.

Mr. Phillips withdrew his amendment.

Mr. D’Amore asked if this amendment is passed, does the Administration have any problems with it?
Mr. Bennington said he has no objection to it; he can’t answer for the Mayor.
Attorney Marchetto asked if it would be a board of 6 members, because they do appeals?
Mr. D’Amore said that would be a potential problem. Barring any time issues, we have a motion to table this and bring it back at the next meeting.

Mr. Schweyer and Mr. Donovan moved to table Bill 2 until the next meeting.

Mr. Donovan said since the board would be even, consisting of 6 members, it has to be researched, or do we need to go to 7?
The motion to table Bill 2 until the next meeting was approved by common consent.
Bill 3

Administration Sponsored: Amending the 2009 Capital Fund Budget to provide for a supplemental appropriation of One Hundred and Eighty-Four Thousand Six Hundred and Sixty-Four Dollars and Three Cents ($184,664.03), from the Parks and Recreation, Capital Fund, Arts Park Development, to Community and Economic Development Capital Fund, Arts District Enhancements, for improvements, renovations and feasibility studies pertaining to the Arts District.

Mr. Phillips said this bill was discussed at the Parks and Recreation Committee tonight. It was forwarded favorably, 3-0.
Mr. Donovan said some of the money will be used for street light replacements, is that correct? He knows there was concern on 7th Street about what happened with lights.

Bill 3 was adopted, 7 Yeas and 0 Nays.

Bill 4 

Administration Sponsored: Amending the 2009 Capital Fund Budget to provide for a supplemental appropriation of One Hundred Fifty-Seven Thousand Four Hundred and Seventy Nine ($157,479) Dollars providing for the receipt of a grant from the Lehigh County Green Futures Fund to fund the construction of the Arts Walk. 

Mr. Phillips said this bill was discussed at the Parks and Recreation meeting this evening. It was forwarded favorably, 3-0.
Bill 4 was adopted, 7 Yeas and 0 Nays.

Bill 87

Council Sponsored: Amending Part Seventeen, Building and Housing, Title One of Codified Ordinances of Allentown, Pennsylvania, entitled Standards and Administration, by adding a new Article entitled “Sheet Metal Technician requiring certain licensing of persons performing duct work used in HVAC  systems, under certain terms and conditions

Mr. Donovan said his employer has taken a position on this issue. He feels he should not take part in any discussion. Therefore, he must recuse himself from voting on this.

Mr. Phillips said he doesn’t understand the justification for this. The tinknocker bill is a union issue.

Mr. D ‘Amore said Cedar Crest College, his employer, sent a letter in opposition to this bill.

Mr. Schweyer said this bill was recommended favorably, 2-1 (Guridy).

Mr. Guridy said he objected to this because he felt a lot of people should be given the opportunity to be part of this licensure and part of the process.

Greg Potter, 526 South Berks Street, said this is not a union issue as much as it is of health and welfare. Safety always comes first. Look no further than the Hudson River where safety took precedence. They were union and had excellent training. If the HVAC is not properly installed, his health is at risk.

Paul Myarky, Human Resource and Safety Manager for DualTemp, South 12th Street. He said DualTemp is in opposition of the legislation as it’s currently written. He sees 600 hours is required for training. The Department of Labor and Pennsylvania require only 144 hours a year, for 4 years. That’s only 576 hours. Your bill is inconsistent with both bodies who set the standards for the apprenticeship program. He’s concerned the additional hours place a small burden on us. He’s concerned the City is establishing new standards of apprenticeship other than what’s already been approved. DualTemp is registered with the Department of Labor. It doesn’t allow flexibility that he needs as an employer to  hire a variety of people he won’t be able to hire, like someone who has 10/15 years of experience because the bill won’t allow them to take the test, Your bill mandates they go through an apprenticeship program. If he hires someone who came from another company, but would be a new employee to him, and he hasn’t been through an apprenticeship program, he can’t get to the examination. The examination process should be open to anyone who wants to take it. There are other ordinances within the City for Title I, for electrical and plumbing that allow for that. There’s no reason this bill has to be or should be different. The bill restricts the employment ability of the people in Allentown.
Mr. Guridy said his observation is correct. That was one of the points he made.
Mr. D’Amore said if you want the hours to comply with the state or even under, he thinks that’s reasonable – something that would conform to the standard.

Ms. Eichenwald said the hours can be taken care of but what about the flexibility of 10/20 years experience. How would someone enter an apprenticeship program after having worked for 10 years?

Mr. D’Amore said there is a provision in the bill that allows anyone who has that number of hours to be grandfathered in and it doesn’t matter who they worked for.

Mr. Myarky said the grandfather provision is only for the first 30 days. If he wants to hire someone next year that is clearly qualified, he has to go through an apprenticeship program. Why should he put someone that qualified through an apprenticeship program? There’s also an additional cost to him and a reduction in the employee’s pay. He won’t work for me because he doesn’t want to take a pay cut.
Ms. Eichenwald said that make sense to her. How can this be rectified to have more business sense?

Mr. D’Amore said it’s difficult to regulate. We need qualified individuals and qualified individuals meet a certain definition. People have been working without the specific requirements because they haven’t been spelled out. This doesn’t prevent anyone from hiring anyone. Licensing is not required on all jobs. It’s only required on large commercial and multi-residential jobs.
Ms. Eichenwald said if you offer to take the test and be grandfathered in for 30 days, why wouldn’t the same thing apply later? Why can’t they have that option?

Mr. D’Amore said we need to define standards and we need a cutoff.

Mr. Myarky said if you’re giving an examination that’s standardized in terms of the person’s knowledge, and he’s able to pass it, why is it important to go through an apprenticeship as opposed to getting that information from one of the local community colleges, or experience? Your bill cuts out any programs that are being taught locally by the vo-tech schools or HVAC students. We only do commercial jobs. We’re working on the court house. We would like to choose who we want and not have restrictions. We’re totally into quality control and training of employees.
Mr. Phillips said if someone has a certification from another state and they went somewhere else to continue their profession and are able to take a test, what’s the justification for the timeframe? If they’re professionals, they’ve had the training and have been on the job so they can take the test.
Mr. Howells said he agrees with the idea behind this. The Police Department just hired a former New York City Police Officer. They can come in and challenge the test. If you can show you were a police officer in New York for 20 years, and you have that certification, you can challenge the test. How do you ascertain or verify someone has 10,000 hours of experience?

Mr. D’Amore said there is a reciprocity clause for someone who is licensed.

Mr. Potter said he started with Verizon in 1992 and the company can verify that.

Mr. Howells asked what if he’s worked for different companies?

Mr. Potter said they’re still obligated to hold records for employment.

Mr. Schweyer said a question arose in committee. Under Definitions, C, Registered Sheet Metal Technician Apprenticeship Program. A program of apprenticeship skills training that is currently approved by and registered with the United States Bureau of Labor or a State Apprenticeship Council involving at least 8,000 hours of documented practical experience in the installation, maintenance and other servicing of sheet metal systems and at least 600 576 hours of classroom, shop or related instruction in the installation, maintenance and other servicing of sheet metal systems.

Mr. Schweyer said in the grace period for an initial license application we are requiring performing at least 10,000 hours of full documented experience. He will propose an amendment to reduce that number to 8,000.
Bill Dorward, 1610 Linden Street, stated the certification process was a public safety and public health issue – especially in regard to schools and hospitals. Properly installed ductwork saves energy. There is nothing that states you need to pay them apprenticeship wages. 
Mr. Phillips said if your program is about training, why are you restricting vo-tech, community college and Lincoln Tech students from the program?

Donald Snyder, President, Lehigh Carbon Community College, said we appreciates the training and skills an apprenticeship program offers workers who want to go the union route. Businesses in the Lehigh Valley want choices in terms of who they hire in terms of their own individual business. We feel there should be other alternatives rather than just the one program for licensing. For 40 years, LCCC has a HVAC program. Their belief is the education provided to the many students who come into our program are graduates of the vocational technical school program as well. If you want to include additional hours of experience, that would be up to you – a minimum of work experience plus education. I don’t think you would want to be at the same level of apprentice as on the job. He’s asking them to consider this because it would limit the number of options employers have for people getting education. We’re encouraging the need for skilled workers to get a broader education that includes some additional skills. The college education program provides a much broader understanding of those different skills that are required. We ask that it be recognized as an alternative for licensing within the City. Article 1710.03 (B) No person shall knowingly or recklessly make any misrepresentation or omission regarding the status of a person’s sheet metal systems technician license or sheet metal systems apprentice permit with the intent to influence, persuade or induce an individual to contract for work on sheet metal systems. Many HVAC companies are in the City. If they can’t get licenses to work in the City – you can’t even advertise you can do this work outside the City of Allentown. That puts them at a competitive disadvantage. We think there are other alternatives of equal education that should be considered.

Mr. D’Amore said he is a community college professor. He thinks the community colleges fill a vital role in our education system. Your program is a 2 year program. Most licensed apprenticeship programs are twice that.

Mr. Snyder said but there are no education requirements for it.

Mr. D’Amore said there is plenty of classroom time in licensed apprenticeships.

Mr. Phillips said if your educational facility is not considered as an alternative for licensing or certifying, do you think it will impact your programming?

Mr. Snyder said this is the only municipality in the area that would have these requirements. It will hurt citizens of Allentown, many who would have been working in a small business to enter these programs. Many of the residents in the Allentown School District who go on to Lehigh Career Technical Institute would be discouraged from doing that. There are hundreds that will be discouraged.

Mr. Guridy asked how many hours do you think a student would put in?

Mr. Snyder said about 1,050.

Mr. Guridy said some institutions require some kind of actual work. Do you require that?

Mr. Snyder said they don’t require it. The state and federal government are trying to encourage the students who are graduating from Career Technical Institute to get their associate’s degree. Many of them have put in 1500 hours or more through that program which includes work experience.
Mr. Guridy said if someone wanted to get a degree from your institution, do you give credits for that kind of practical work?

Mr. Snyder said no, unless it’s a national skills test or particular area of expertise. He’s not saying the degree itself should qualify you for it. It should be less than 8,000 hours of working when you have a college degree when you have some experience. You’re limiting employment opportunities; limiting people to go into the trade, many of which may decide to go into the union.
Mr. Guridy said an institution like yours, for him, is preferable. It’s not for everybody.

Mr. D ‘Amore said some apprenticeship programs do give credit and/or allow individuals to test for certain levels. They don’t have to enter at the ground floor.

Davey DeWalt, Bates Home Services, said he’s employed 3 graduates from LCCC. Under this ordinance, neither one of them would be allowed to perform sheet metal work under his employment. He questioned the motive of this bill. His interpretation of ordinances is suppose to protect the safety of residents – he doesn’t see this as enhancing their welfare. There are parts of this ordinance that are more restrictive than the plumbing ordinances that are in place now. There are no exemptions allowed. This applies to any kind of work in your home, i.e., a small furnace.
Mr. D’Amore said that’s not true. It does not apply to single residences.

Mr. Guridy said it’s Article 1710.03.

Mr. DeWalt said the reciprocity clause puts on a higher standard than any other business. If you were a business from an outlying area, it does not have these apprenticeship requirements.

Mr. D’Amore said all the reciprocity does is say if you’re licensed in another jurisdiction, there is reciprocity in the licensure. This is being considered in Philadelphia. You can bring your Philadelphia license to Allentown and be granted under reciprocity.

Bill Dorward, 87 Kern Road, Kutztown, said he’s a representative of the Sheet Metal Workers Local #19, and he supports this ordinance. When a tradesperson or contractor comes to work, they have the potential to put everyone in jeopardy if they are not properly trained.

Ms. Eichenwald asked when the work is completed, is there an outside inspector that comes in to look at it?

Mr. Dorward said there typically is an inspector who will check all jobs.

Ms. Eichenwald asked what are their qualifications? Have they actually done the work?

Mr. Dorward said he can’t answer that.

Ms. Eichenwald asked if the apprenticeship program is open to all, and how is it determined?
Mr. Dorward said anybody can become registered in the apprenticeship program. All you do is reach out to Labor and Industry and you can apply.

Ms. Eichenwald asked does the apprenticeship program prepare one to do a better job than going to LCCC?

Mr. Dorward said he doesn’t doubt LCCC has a very good program. He doesn’t know how much field time they get. Different apprenticeship programs, with the union programs, or the Builders and Contractors program – you have 3 types. You have classroom and on the job training hours at the same time.

Ms. Eichenwald asked what is the certification of the instructors for the apprenticeship program? Do they have to have a special license, education?

Mr. Dorward said all of their instructors go through instructor education. They wind up with a certificate such as certified welders, inspectors to certify the certified welders.
Ms. Eichenwald asked how did the apprenticeship program co-join with the union? If you go through the apprenticeship program do you have to be a union member?

Mr. Dorward said the majority of the people who come in are looking to become a union member. They fill their need as an apprenticeship in a 4-1/2 year program.

Ms. Eichenwald asked if a person successfully completes the apprenticeship program, are they automatically a member of the union?

Mr. Dorward said they’re a member of the union from day 1, typically.

Mr. Phillips asked if you know anything about the buildings being constructed in the City?

Mr. Dorward said he wouldn’t say anything about the City at this point in time. When ductwork is delivered to a job site, they’ll leave it outside. It could be lined with insulation or soundproofing. If it’s in the elements, you’re going to pick up anything.
Mr. Guridy said he’s trying to figure out what the bone of contention is.

Mr. D’Amore said he has no bone of contention. If you want to make an amendment to the take that clause out, he doesn’t have an objection. The rationale for putting it in is if the company or an individual is not licensed to do work in the City in accordance with the ordinances, they shouldn’t be advertising within the City that they do that work. Local #19 runs an apprenticeship program – not the only one that qualifies under this ordinance.

Mr. Dorward said absolutely not.

Mr. D’Amore said there are non-union apprenticeship programs that would qualify under this ordinance. This is not a union monopoly bill.
Michael Gibson, 36 North Godfrey Street, said you have several layers of protection for both safety and welfare and health within the City. If someone has a project in the City, they have to provide a set of drawings that have already been looked at by the architect and an engineer, and you have inspectors who go out and inspect the projects. If you have someone coming from out of town after the grandfather clause has already expired, and they move in from out of state and want to locate here and be in this profession, have the experience and now have to reenter into an apprenticeship program. Article 1710.05 (A) outlines the requirements; (B) indicates that in order to take the exam, they must have evidence of completing an apprenticeship program. LCCC has a great program they had partnered with, as well as LCTI. This bill does not allow companies to allow for co-ops in vocational technical schools or LCCC to work on any projects to gain valuable experience to determine if they want to continue in the trade.

Mr. Schweyer said he disagrees with him. If somebody wants to come and test the waters, if they’re interested in the sheet metal trade, no where in this legislation does it say somebody can’t get a job as an apprentice in sheet metal program to work. Your very point that people can’t get a job is patently false. The crux of this bill is you have to be an apprentice before you get your certification.
Mr. Gibson said his point had nothing to do with employment. Vocational and technical schools have what they call a shadowing co-op program where young students who are completing an HVAC program have an ability to do one of 2 things.  Go on to a construction site and observe the process of design and installation of HVAC systems; 2nd, is a co-op, where those same students have the ability to go there on a per diem or stipend to assist an employer to learn more about the program so when and if they graduate from that program, they can either enter into Local #19’s apprenticeship program, LCCC or any other trading program. It’s not a matter of my comments or eliminating the job. By the way this ordinance is phrased, they will not have that ability to walk on to a construction site in the City and get the experience to determine if this is the career they wish to pursue.
Mr. Schweyer said he patently disagrees with his assessment. Is there anything that prohibits us – that ABC, Sheet Metal Workers, or anybody else could not partner with LCCC, LCTI, or anybody else in order to provide those services?
Mr. Gibson said there are certain limitations based on the age of the student at a vocational technical school. They have to be 16 years or older. There are no limitations to partner with community colleges.

Mr. Schweyer asked if he would partner with them?

Mr. Gibson said the difficulty you get into is the community colleges and many of the degree programs in the technical trade schools are governed by the Department of Education. Our apprenticeship programs are governed by the Department of Labor. You run into some conflicting challenges with being able to partner and gain credit for reciprocity back and forth with the 2 entities.
Mr. Schweyer said he imagines you’re right with course work that Mr. Snyder and others require when it comes to taking things like business math, for example, but he imagines blueprint reading would be reciprocal. Technical writing and air conditioning and refrigeration and the other coursework would. Of this, at least half if not ¾ intuitively, you could partner with them and apply it toward your apprenticeship program.

Mr. Gibson said theoretically, you should be able to accept. . . 
Mr. Schweyer said if you’re counting it as your manhours. If that’s approved by Labor and Industry . . . there’s nothing prohibiting you partnering with anybody or to provide some of this course work except for what Labor and Industry might tell you.

Mr. Gibson said correct. However, they do have the opportunity, i.e., for blueprint. If their blueprint program is giving reciprocity to one another, there should be no reason City Council should be able to acknowledge the program from LCCC up front. If you’re asking if it’s equal, should we not recognize theirs, as should City Council.

Mr. Schweyer said we’re asking for people to have a certain amount of training. We’re asking them to enroll in a training program.

Mr. Gibson said no, you’re not. Your ordinance is asking specifically for them to enter into an apprenticeship program.

Mr. Schweyer said which is duly designated by the Department of Labor.

Mr. Gibson said that’s not what you asked him. You asked if we would recognize it as their equivalent. We would.

Mr. Schweyer said he’s asking if there would be anything prohibiting your ability to apply to Labor and Industry.

Mr. Gibson said no.

Mr. Schweyer said then you could partner with them.

Bobby (inaudible) said he likes the idea of the bill. He likes the certification and licensing. He frequents a lot of businesses in the City. It’s good to know there’s going to be standards and licensing and certification for the people who work in those areas. You wouldn’t want someone to work on your car who wasn’t certified.
Ed Lehr, President of Jack Lehr Electric, raised the same concerns about the apprentice program limiting access into the vocation and preventing career mobility. Your bill is having the effect on having any other education other than an apprenticeship program. The reciprocity doesn’t accomplish the opportunity that you think it gives to future applicants. The HVAC field is a very broad field. The scope of the buildings you covered in this bill is other than a 2 unit residence. Someone running a bath exhaust duct in a 3 unit apartment is subject to the requirement of the 4 year apprenticeship program. The problem with the reciprocity is that if you read further beyond what you have under the reciprocity clause – it says the other party has to accept Allentown’s licensing and give licenses in their area. That’s where the problem comes in. He has electrical licenses in New Jersey and other municipalities. The catch is if your test isn’t the same as theirs, they won’t judge whether its equal or better. If it’s not the same, it won’t be accepted. The State of New Jersey will not accept your test because the test wasn’t administered by people approved by the State of New Jersey. The reciprocity is when you require the other party accept your license, you have limited what sources these other candidates can offer for their previous licensing. Lastly, the burden you’re putting on the individual workers. You mention about listing the workers on the website. You’re in public life; you don’t have your home address or home phone posted on the website. The people who you license are not the people who contract do the work. They are the people who are working for them – private individuals. What function or value do you provide to the residents by putting their names there? If you put anything other than their names, it’s unfair to people who are just trying to go to work and trying to earn a living. There’s been no discussion of fees. The workers maintain licenses not only here but with other municipalities. That’s a big burden. 
Mr. Schweyer said the reciprocity does not mandate they have to accept hours. When it comes to listing the names on the website, we do that in the Commonwealth for any number of licenses which are available on the State’s website from doctors, nurses, cosmetology, real estate, etc. That’s a common practice. He would agree with him if home addresses and phone numbers would be on it. It would not include that or social security numbers, dates of birth. It would just be the name and license.
Mr. Lehr said all those licensed professionals and semi-professionals all have direct contact with the public as part of their profession. The people who are doing HVAC work are working for an employer. They have no contractual connection to the customer. They’re private individuals. They haven’t put themselves forward as business people. He thinks they deserve a higher level of privacy.

Mr. D’Amore said he disagrees.

Mr. Lehr said when you implement this, don’t go any further than names. The fee he is referring to is the technician that applies for this 2 year license must pay a fee. The gentlemen who work in this field work in Allentown, Bethlehem, Easton, Bethlehem and Hanover Township, etc. They don’t work in one city for 2 years. If you charge $100 for a technician’s license for 2 years, the people doing the work will be paying $800 or $1,000 just to maintain their licenses.

Ms. Eichenwald said if we alleviated these 3 issues, reciprocity, fees and the listing of names, do you feel apprenticeship leading to licensure is the best way to go?

Mr. Lehr said he doesn’t think that’s the question. The question is can a person be qualified to serve a function somewhere in the broad range of services you cover by some other educational means? The answer is absolutely yes. There are functions that are served in that field that he believes are not addressed in detail. For instance, the hospitals in the City. There are clean areas in hospitals where cancer treatment drugs are reformulated and the hoods in the clean rooms have specific pressure balances; there are people specializing in calibrating and setting up those areas. There are a number of highly technical fields where the technical expertise, and the job they do, will involve getting within the scope of this bill. You’re going to fine them $300 a day if they don’t come to you and have a 4 year apprentice program and take your test. It’s not right.
Mr. Guridy asked if we can come to a consensus on this bill. He would like to lower the manhours to be equal to those required by the Department of Labor standards.

Mr. Guridy and Mr. Schweyer moved to amend Bill 87, Article 1710.02, Definitions, (C), to read “at least 570 hours of classroom, shop or related instruction in the installation, maintenance and other servicing of sheet metal systems.”
The amendment to Bill 87 was approved by common consent. 

Mr. Guridy and Mr. Schweyer moved to amend Bill 87, Article 1710.08 (B) 2, to read “8,000” hours instead of 10,000.

The amendment to Bill 87 was approved by common consent.

Mr. Guridy and Ms. Eichenwald moved to amend Bill 87 to have institutions that may offer the same programming or training be compatible with the apprenticeship programs.

Mr. Schweyer said his objection is not that LCCC or any other technical school can provide the training, The question we’re being asked is a 2 year associate’s degree plus or minus whatever work they did with any other pre-college training program does that – actually equal an apprenticeship program? If someone gets a 2 year degree, that would be about 4,000 hours of work.
Mr. Schweyer suggested tabling this bill. This amendment is too technical.

Ms. Eichenwald said the end product is we want to make sure people who do this work are well trained and have the education for all the reasons we heard this evening. Mr. Gibson said when it comes to plumbing and electrical licensing, they have to take a test and meet certain requirements. She also agrees this is too complicated to come to a conclusion tonight. She agrees with Mr. Schweyer that it needs to be tabled.

Mr. D’Amore said any apprentice program can partner with any of those entities. Any apprentice program can offer credit. It would be impossible for us to regulate the determination of any apprentice program mandating them to accept credits from anywhere. These are state and federally regulated apprentice programs. We don’t have the authority to do that. Qualified apprentice programs will accept and partner with a number of these entities. This is restrictive. It  only deals with large complex sheet metal systems; not with residential systems.

Mr. Guridy moved to withdraw his amendment.

Mr. Guridy and Mr. Schweyer moved to amend Bill 87 by removing 1710.03 (B)

The amendment to Bill 87 was approved by common consent.

Mr. Schweyer and Mr. Guridy moved to amend Bill 87, Article 1710.11, Sheet Metal Licensing Board, by adding 3 alternative members to the board in the event a quorum is unattainable.

The amendment to Bill 87 was approved by common consent.

Mr. Guridy and Mr. Phillips moved to table Bill 87 and refer it back to committee.

The motion to table Bill 87 and refer it back to committee was approved, 7 Yeas and 0 Nays.
10. ORDINANCES FOR INTRODUCTION: 
Bill 5

Administration Sponsored: Amending the 2009 General Fund to provide for a supplemental appropriation of Twelve Thousand Seven Hundred Fifty ($12,750) Dollars; to provide for the grant from the Pennsylvania Commission on Crime and Delinquency to the City of Allentown for Weed and Seed Quality of Life Program which supports the economic development mission of enhancing safety and resident engagement in the Weed and Seed Community.
Bill 5 was referred to CEDC.

11. CONSENT AGENDA: None
12. RESOLUTIONS ON SECOND READING: None.
13. RESOLUTIONS ON FIRST READING: 

R7

Authorizes the submission of a Neighborhood Stabilization Program (NSP) grant application in the amount of $2,000,000 

R7 was referred to CEDC.

R8

Supports appropriate authorities making every effort to deal with the arson crisis in Coatesville
Mr. Schweyer said there have been a rash of fires in Coatesville. This resolution offers aid to Coatesville from the City of Allentown.
R8 was approved, 6 Yeas and 1 Nay (Phillips).

Mr. Schweyer moved to suspend the rules to introduce R14, Liquor License for Wegmans .

The rules were suspended by common consent.

R14

Amendment to R28499 , Approving the Intermunicipal Transfer of a Liquor License to Wegmans Food Markets. Liquor License No. R-13797 at 3900 Tilghman Street

R14 was referred to CEDC.

14.  NEW BUSINESS:  None.
15.  GOOD AND WELFARE:  None.
16.  ADJOURN


The meeting was adjourned at 10:25 PM.

Michael P. Hanlon

City Clerk
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